
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Joint Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

Budget Meeting 
Agenda 

Wednesday 27 January 2021, 6.30 pm 

This meeting will be held remotely – members of the public can watch 
live on YouTube: https://youtu.be/rYBaAdhc4Hk 

MEMBERSHIPS 

Children and Education Policy and 

Accountability Committee 
Health, Inclusion and Social Care Policy 

and Accountability Committee  
Administration 

Councillor Sharon Holder (Chair) 

Councillor Lucy Richardson 

Councillor Alexandra Sanderson 

Councillor Asif Siddique 

Councillor Lucy Richardson (Chair) 

Councillor Jonathan Caleb-Landy 

Councillor Bora Kwon 

Councillor Mercy Umeh 

Opposition 

Councillor Mark Loveday Councillor Amanda Lloyd-Harris 

Co-optees 

Eleanor Allen, London Diocesan Board for 

Schools  

Nandini Ganesh, Parentsactive 

Representative  

Matt Jenkins, Teacher Representative 

Nadia Taylor, Parent Governor 

Representative  

Victoria Brignell - Action On Disability  

Jim Grealy - H&F Save Our NHS  

Keith Mallinson  

Roy Margolis 

 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Bathsheba Mall 

Committee Co-ordinator 

 Tel:  0777667 2816 

 E-mail: bathsheba.mall@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

NOTE: This is a joint meeting of the Children and Education PAC and the 
Health, Inclusion and Social Care PAC to scrutinise the 2021/22 budget 
proposals 

Date Issued: 19 January 2021 

https://youtu.be/rYBaAdhc4Hk


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Joint Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

Budget Meeting 
 

27 January 2021 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 

 

2.   ROLL CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 

 To confirm attendance, the Chair will perform a roll call. Members will also 
have the opportunity to declare any interests.  

 
If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions 
and Standards Committee.   
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

3.   COVID-19 - UPDATE  

 

 

 This item provides a verbal update on Covid-19 and the Council’s 
response in supporting residents throughout the pandemic. 
 
 

 

4.   2021 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY  

 

4 - 44 

 This report sets out the budget proposals for the services covered by 
these Policy and Accountability Committees (PAC). An update is also 
provided on any proposed changes in fees and charges in the budget.  

 

 
 



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to: Children and Education Policy and Accountability Committee 
 Health, Inclusion and Social Care Policy and Accountability Committee 

 
Date:  27/01/2021 
 
Subject: 2021 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
 
Report of: Cabinet member for Children and Education – Councillor Larry Culhane 

Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care – Councillor Ben 
Coleman 
Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial Services – Councillor Max 
Schmid 
 

Responsible Directors: Director of Children’s Service – Jacqui McShannon 
   Strategic Director of Social Care – Lisa Redfern 

Director of Finance – Emily Hill  
 

 
 Summary 

 Cabinet will present their revenue budget and council tax proposals to Budget 
Council on 24th February 2021. A balanced budget will be set in accordance with 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992. 
 
This report sets out the budget proposals for the services covered by these Policy 
and Accountability Committees (PAC). An update is also provided on any 
proposed changes in fees and charges in the budget. 
 
Recommendations 

1. That the joint Policy and Accountability Committee (PAC) considers the 
budget proposals and makes recommendations to Cabinet as appropriate. 

 
2. That the joint PAC considers the proposed changes to fees and charges 

and makes recommendations as appropriate.  
 

 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 

H&F Priorities 
 

Our Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to the 
H&F Priorities  

Being ruthlessly financially 
efficient 

We need to always confirm that spend fits 
our Council’s priorities; challenge how much 
needs to be spent; and achieve results 
within agreed budgets. Finance is 
everyone’s business and every penny 
counts.   

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



Contact Officer(s): 
 
Name:  Emily Hill  
Position: Director of Finance  
Telephone: 020 8753 3145 
Email:  emily.hill@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Name:   Andrew Lord  
Position:  Head of Strategic Planning and Monitoring 
Telephone: 020 8753 2531 
Email:  andrew.lord@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Name:   Tony Burton   
Position:  Head of Finance – Children’s Services & Education 
Telephone: 07980 556831 
Email:   tony.burton@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Name:   Prakash Daryanani 
Position:  Head of Finance –  Social Care 
Telephone: 020 8753 2523 
Email:  prakash.daryanani@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
 
 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 
 
Not Applicable 
 

  

Page 5

mailto:andrew.lord@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:tony.burton@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:prakash.daryanani@lbhf.gov.uk


 
Proposals and detailed analysis 

 
The budget requirement and gap 

 
1. The gross General Fund budget1 rolled forward to 2021/22 is £528m of which 

the net budget requirement of £156.9m is funded from council resources 
(such as council tax and business rates) and general government grant. 

 
Table 1 – 2021/22 budget requirement  
 

Budgeted expenditure £m 

Housing benefit payments 111 

Departmental budgets 417 

Gross budgeted expenditure 528 

Less:  

Specific government grants (including housing 
benefits and dedicated schools grant) 

(243) 

Fees and charges (67) 

Contributions (e.g. health, other boroughs) (44) 

Other income (e.g. investment interest, rentals 
and recharges) 

(17.1) 

Budget requirement rolled forward to 
2021/22 

156.9 

 
2 The budget proposals  for 2021/22, and forecast to 2024/25, are summarised in 

Table 2. A balanced budget is proposed for 2021/22 with a contribution to 
general balances, arising from one-off/ non-recurrent benefits, to enhance 
financial resilience, of £1.1m and set aside of a contingency for unfunded 
Covid-19 pressures of £1.1m.  
 

3 The medium-term financial forecast is subject to significant uncertainty and risk. 
Covid-19 has had an unprecedented impact on national and council finances. 
As part of the Spending Review 2020 (SR20) the Chancellor of the Exchequer 
set out the  economic crisis resulting from Covid-19. Past experience of the 
government austerity programme indicates that the local authority sector may 
bear a disproportionate share of any future austerity measures, at the same 
time as experiencing increased demand. The government’s so-called ‘levelling-
up’ policy is also likely to result in a significant transfer of resources away from 
London despite the presence of high levels of deprivation in the capital that 
councils are tasked with addressing. The 2021/22 budget proposals are 
therefore mindful of these future financial threats. 
 

4 The Covid-19 pandemic has emphasised that councils need an adequate 
safety net to manage increased levels of financial risk. The experience of 
several councils, including Croydon and Bexley in London, has shown the 
difficulties that can arise when reserves are not maintained at a sufficient level. 

                                            
1
 Figures exclude capital charges and internal service level agreements. These have a net nil impact on 

the budget. 

Page 6



 
 
Table 2 - Budget Summary  

 

  
 

2021/22 
£m 

2022/23 
£m 

2023/24 
£m 

2024/25 
£m 

Base budget 156.9 156.9 156.9 156.9 

Provision for inflation 4.1 10.1 16.1 22.1 

Budget pressures and priorities 5.2 11.2 17.2 23.2 

Covid-19 impact provision 2.7 2.5 0 0 

Net cost of borrowing 0.8 1.6 2.0 2.0 

Savings and additional income (6.7) (7.6) (7.8) (8.0) 

Adjustment for one-off saving (1.1) 0 0 0 

Covid-19 contingency 1.1 0 0 0 

Contribution to balances 1.1 0 0 0 

Budgeted expenditure 164.1 174.7 184.4 196.2 

Government resources (36.9) (36.9) (36.9) (36.9) 

Fair funding /grant reform 
(estimate) 

0 4.7 9.5 14.2 

Business rates (net of tariff) (57.2) (58.3) (59.4) (60.6) 

Council tax  (67.3) (68.0) (68.7) (69.3) 

Council tax – prior year 
collection fund deficit 

0.4 0.4 0.4 0 

One-off council tax support 
grant  

(1.4) 0 0 0 

Use of developer contributions 
for enhanced community 
enforcement / safety 

(1.7) (1.7) (1.7) (1.7) 

Budgeted resources (164.1) (159.7) (156.8) (154.3) 

Budget gap 0 14.9 27.6 41.9 

 
Budget assumptions 
 

5 Provision for contract inflation of £4.1m is made of which £2.4m relates to 
adult social care. Further to the Spending Review 2020 (SR20) announcement 
a pay freeze is modelled. 
 

6 For non-statutory fees and charges in recent years the policy has been that 
they are: 

 Frozen for Adult Social Care, Children’s Services and Housing.  

 A standard uplift of 1.7% based on the July 2020 Retail Price Index for other 
non-commercial and non-parking fees.   

 Commercial services that are charged on a for-profit basis, will be reviewed 
on an ongoing basis in response to market conditions and varied up and 
down as appropriate, with appropriate authorisations according to the council 
constitution. 

Page 7



 Parking charges and fines are to be set in line with transport policy objectives 
and not considered as part of the budget process. 

However, for this budget a ‘freeze’ is also proposed to the fees and charges 
set by the Environment Department. The charges for children’s services and 
adult social care continue to be ‘frozen’. 

 
7 Allowance is made for an increase in the net cost of borrowing in line with the 

2021/22 capital programme commitments. This takes account of an 
announcement by the Public Works Loans Board that local authority borrowing 
rates (except when the primary purpose is to secure an investment yield) have 
fallen by 1% from 26 November. Whilst the current low interest rate 
environment enables Hammersmith & Fulham to borrow at low rates it also 
means that minimal returns are earned on the council’s cash balances.  

 
8 The Council has determined that a key priority area for the investment of 

available developer contributions, with general purposes, is the provision of 
enhanced community enforcement and safety arrangements. An on-going 
investment of £1.7m per annum is included within the financial forecast. 

 
9 Government grant funding allocations to Hammersmith & Fulham have been 

cut by £63m from 2010/11 to 2021/22. As part of the SR20 announcement the 
Chancellor announced a 4.5% increase in local authority core “spending power” 
for 2021/22. But, as set out in Table 3 the majority of this increase comes from 
an assumed 2% increase in council tax and further 3% levy regarding the adult 
social care precept. Local authorities are also compensated for the government 
decision to freeze business rates in 2021/22 (local authorities would normally 
receive extra income from an inflationary increase). The net general grant 
increase for Hammersmith & Fulham from 2020/21 to 2021/22 is £3.3m. This 
includes  additional one-off council tax support grant of £1.4m. All figures are 
subject to confirmation when the final settlement is published in late January. 

 
 Table 3 – Core spending power analysis 
 

2021/22 additional core spending power (general 
grant, council tax and business rates) 

National H&F 
Estimate 

New adults & children’s social care support grant £0.3 billion £2.0 million 

New lower tier services grant £0.1 billion £0.9 million 

Reduction in new homes bonus grant -£0.3 billion -£1.6 million 

3% additional adult social care precept  £0.8 billion £1.9 million 

2% council tax referendum cap £0.3 billion £1.3 million 

One-off council tax support grant  £0.8 billion £1.4 million 

Business rates (grant compensation for a freeze) £0.2 billion £0.7 million 

Total £2.2 billion £6.6 million 

London spending power increase estimated at 4.3% +4.5% +4.0% 

 

Page 8



10 The spending power increases for both London and Hammersmith & Fulham 
are below the national average. Changes to the New Homes Bonus grant 
scheme (which compensated faster growing areas for delivering additional 
housing) reflect the government’s so-called ‘levelling-up’ agenda. The £1.6m 
grant loss regarding the New Homes Bonus grant in 2021/22 was unexpected 
and only became apparent following the SR20 announcement. The residual 
New Homes Grant receivable in 2021/22 is £5.2m for Hammersmith and 
Fulham and there is a significant risk that this funding will reduce further in 
future years.  A new un-ringfenced grant is receivable for local authorities 
(including Hammersmith & Fulham) that provide lower tier services, such as 
homelessness, planning, recycling and refuse collection and leisure services 
but it is unclear if that is set to continue in future years. 

 
11 Several new specific grant allocations were announced in the SR20. The 

allocations are not yet known for Hammersmith & Fulham. The financial 
forecast assumes a neutral impact as they will be potentially matched against 
spend commitments. The national figures for these grants are: 

 

 The Schools budget will increase by £2.2 billion in 2021/22 (compared to a 
£2.7 billion increase in 2020/21) 

 An additional £98m for local authorities to deliver the new duty to support 
victims of domestic abuse 

 £220m for a holiday activities and food programme. 

 £254m new funding for rough sleeping. 
 

12 A number of planned reforms to the local government finance system were 
postponed in 2020/21. SR20 indicates that the following will be taken forward 
in 2021/22: 
 

 The so-called ‘Fair funding’ review and a multi-year local government 
settlement are expected to be implemented from 2022/23 onwards 

 The government will shortly consult on the New Homes Bonus grant 
scheme with a view to implementing reform in 2022/23 

 Proposals are to be brought forward on reform of the adult social care 
system next year 

 Further significant action on public health grant will be taken in the 
forthcoming months 

 A final report on a fundamental review of business rates will be published 
in the Spring. 

 
Significant risk and uncertainty arises from each of these potential reforms. 
Given the government’s agenda there is a threat that substantial resources will 
be distributed away from London. The forecast assumes a 5% (£4m) cut in 
grant/ business rates resources from 2022/23 onwards and further reductions of 
£0.8m per annum in the New Homes Bonus grant. 
 

13 The government has modelled an adult social care precept since 2016/17. 
In the first years of the levy, Hammersmith & Fulham determined not to apply 
the levy despite the fact the Council’s funding from government was modelled 
on the assumption that we would. Due to the continued high levels of inflation 
and instability in the social care market, the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic 

Page 9



and the government’s continued failure to propose a long-term funding solution 
to social care funding, the Council proposes to allow 3% of the government’s 
adult social care levy for 2021/22. The total levy increase for Hammersmith & 
Fulham over the 6 years to 2021/22 will be 7% compared to the 13% increase 
assumed by the government. The 3% levy will generate £1.9m and 
Hammersmith & Fulham will use such funding to support adult social care.  

 
14 An increase in the Hammersmith & Fulham element of council tax of 

1.99% is proposed for 2021/22, as modelled by the government in their 
spending power calculations for local government. This will generate extra 
income of £1.3m in 2021/22 and £5.2m over a four-year period. This will 
support investment in key services for residents and, given the financial risks 
and threats facing H&F, support future financial resilience. The Hammersmith 
& Fulham Band D Council Tax charge is the third lowest in the country and 
35% (£322) below the London average.  As set out below, only slightly more 
than half of dwellings are liable for full council tax with exemptions/discounts 
for council tax support claimants, students, care leavers and single person 
households. 

 
Table 4:  Liability for council tax 

 

Total dwellings in the borough 91,550 

Reductions:  

Exemptions (mainly students, includes care leavers) (4,161) 

Council tax support claimants (elderly & working age on 
low income) 

(12,009) 

Single person discount (25% discount) (28,180) 

Dwellings liable for 100% of council tax  52% 

  

2020/21 Band D charge for Hammersmith & Fulham 792.42 

A 4.99% increase  for 2021/22 is £39.54 per annum, £0.076 per week. £0.11 
per day. 

 
15 Due to the economic impact of Covid-19, the council tax income forecast 

assumes a collection rate of 97% (compared to 97.5% for 2020/21). Allowance 
is also made for an increase of 1,005 (11%) in the number of local council tax 
support discounts awarded. There is a risk that the economic downturn may 
result in a lower council tax income if collection rates deteriorate or if more 
residents become eligible for council tax support. As part of the provisional local 
government finance settlement it was announced that £670m of new local 
council tax support grant funding is to be distributed in recognition of the 
increased costs of providing local council tax support following the pandemic. 
The grant will be un-ringfenced and is for 2021/22 with no commitment to it 
continuing in future years. The indicative allocation is £1.4m and this is included 
in the 2021/22 budget. Of this sum £1.1m is set aside as a covid-19 
contingency to help address potential extra budgetary pressures. 

 
16 For 2020/21 council tax income has been adversely impacted by the Covid-19 

pandemic.  An estimated in-year loss of £6m is currently forecast (of which the 
council share is £4.228m). The government have announced that this loss 
(collection fund deficit) can be spread over 3 years from 2021/22 onwards 

Page 10



and SR20 further announced that 75% of these irrecoverable losses will be 
funded by government. The estimated net charge to Hammersmith  & Fulham is 
£0.4m per annum from 2021/22 to 2023/24. This estimate is subject to further 
review and confirmation of the government compensation scheme and 
allocations. 

 
17 The government have announced a business rates freeze for 2021/22. 

Normally the business rates multiplier would increase in line with inflation and 
local authorities would retain a share (30% for Hammersmith & Fulham) of the 
resultant extra income. As set out in Table 3 the government will compensate 
local authorities for this decision.   

 
18 The impact of Covid-19 on future business rates income is unknown but likely to 

be negative in the short and medium term. The financial forecast assumes that 
Hammersmith & Fulham will receive the minimum amount guaranteed, the 
safety net threshold, by government. This is £57.2m for 2021/22. For years 
beyond 2021/22 a 2% inflationary increase to the safety net is modelled.  

 
19 Hammersmith & Fulham currently participates in the pan-London business rates 

pool which enables more business rates growth to be retained within London. 
The latest estimated pool benefit for Hammersmith & Fulham is £580,000 for 
2020/21 but due to  the impact of Covid-19 on businesses it is expected that the 
final pool benefit will be lower. An updated forecast is due in January and the 
final benefit will be confirmed by next September. Due to concerns regarding 
the impact of Covid-19 on future business rates income the financial case for 
pooling in 2021/22 is not strong. London Councils have sought assurances/ 
guarantees regarding potential pool losses from government. These have not 
been forthcoming and there has been a collective withdrawal from the pool.  

 
INVESTMENT, SAVINGS AND RISKS 

 
20 Investment in services (increasing the available budget) and savings proposals 

(reducing the available budget) for the services covered by this PAC are set out 
in Appendix 1 with budget risks set out in Appendix 2. 

 
Investment  

 
21 Investment is required to fund expenditure on priority areas and/ or to meet the 

costs associated with demographic or demand led pressures. Allowance is also 
made for the on-going impact of Covid-19 on council services. Investment in 
services is summarised by department in Table 4 and by category in Table 5. 
Beyond 2021/22 headroom of £6m per annum is modelled to fund new 
investment and a further £2.5m set aside as cover for the impact of covid-19 in 
2022/23.  

  

Page 11



 
Table 5: 2021/22 Investment Proposals 
 

Department £m 

Children's Services 1.6 

Social Care 2.4 

The Economy 1.2 

Environment 1.1 

Finance 0.1 

Council Wide 1.5 

Total 7.9 

 
Table 6: Categorisation of investment proposals  
 

 £m 

Increase in demand / demographic growth 2.4 

Resident priority 0.5 

Budget pressure / increase in contingency 2.3 

Impact of Covid-19 / Economic downturn 2.7 

Total 7.9 

 
 Savings and Income Generation 
 
22 After ten years of austerity it is increasingly difficult to identify and deliver 

substantive savings. However, further savings are necessary if the financial 
challenge of  government funding cuts, unfunded burdens, inflation, and 
demand and growth pressures is to be met and the council will need to continue 
to consider all available options to operate within the funding available to it.  
 

23 The proposed savings (including additional income) for 2021/22 are set out in 
Table 7. London Councils have also indicated that a further short-term saving of 
£1.1m (for 2021/22 and possibly 2022/23) will arise regarding the cost of the 
concessionary fares scheme (freedom pass). This is due to lower usage of the 
pass during lockdown and more broadly in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. 
As a short-term saving this sum will be added to general balances in line with 
the council’s reserves strategy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



  Table 7: 2021/22  firm savings and additional income 
 

Department £m 

Children's Services 0.7 

Social Care  2.0 

Reinvestment of public health 0.9 

The Economy 1.1 

Environment (including Parking) 1.1 

Finance 0.4 

Resources 0.5 

Savings 6.7 

 
24 The saving proposals are categorised by type in Table 8. 
 

  Table 8: Categorisation of 2021/22 savings  
 

 £’m 

Service rationalisation/budget reduced in line with spend 1.1 

Commercialisation/Income  0.5 

Prevention 1.0 

Procurement / Commissioning 1.4 

Service reconfiguration 1.1 

Staffing / Productivity 1.6 

Total All Savings 6.7 

 
Risk and financial resilience  

 
25 An updated reserves strategy and action plan will be included within the suite of 

finance reports presented to Budget Council.  
 

26 The current reserves forecast is set out in Table 9 and models a fall in overall 
general fund reserves and balances to £47.9m by the close of 2024/25. This 
assumes a balanced budget is set each year with no further call on reserves. 

 
Table 9 – Reserves and general balances - cash flow forecast to 2024/25 

 

Three-and-a-half-year Civic 
Campus relocation 

2020/21 
£m 

2021/22 
£m 

2022/23 
£m 

2023/24 
£m 

2024/25 
£m 

Opening balance 63.5 47.7 39.5 50.2 48.0 

Forecast movement  (6.6) (7.1) 12.9 (0.1) (0.1) 

Budgeted 2021/22 contribution  1.1    

Closing balance 56.9 41.6 52.3 50.1 47.9 

Risks and other potential uses  (9.3) (2.1) (2.1) (2.1) 0 

Revised balance 47.7 39.5 50.2 48.0 47.9 

Outside the forecast      

Developer contributions 16.6     

 
 

Page 13



27 The reserves brought forward to 2020/21 are net of £19m set aside regarding 
the historic deficit in Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funding. Discussions are 
on-going with the Department for Education on potential financial support 
regarding this shortfall. Any additional funding made available will improve the 
current forecast. 

 
28 Allowance is made within the reserves forecast for the estimated 2020/21 

revenue budget overspend which includes the unfunded impact of Covid-19 
(£5.7m at month 6) and further increases in the cumulative High-Needs DSG 
deficit. Other substantive risks include: 

 The direct impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on council expenditure and 
income. To date the government has not fully funded the council with an 
in-year shortfall of £2.5m (month 6 Corporate Revenue Monitor) forecast. 
The government have announced that the fees and charges grant 
compensation scheme2 will continue in the first quarter of 2021/22 and 
that a new un-ringfenced emergency Covid-19 pressures grant of £6.2m 
will be receivable in 2021/22. There is a risk that such funding will be 
insufficient to fully compensate the council for the extra costs incurred and 
income lost and/ or that the financial impact so Covid-19 measures will 
extend beyond the first quarter of the new financial year. The budget 
proposals include the set aside of £1.1m as a contingency for further 
unfunded Covid-19 pressures. 

 The indirect impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the wider economy. An 
economic downturn will likely increase demand for needs-based council 
services whilst exerting downwards pressure on income streams. The 
council has already seen an increase in the number of residents awarded 
council tax support scheme discounts. The new ‘tier 4’ arrangements for 
London may result in an even deeper economic shock.  

 Government reform of the local government finance system. So-called 
‘Fair funding’, business rates, the New Homes Bonus grant and the 
system for social care funding are all potentially subject to reform by 
2022/23. It is expected that significant resources will be distributed away 
from London. For modelling purposes, the council’s financial plan 
assumes a grant reduction of approximately 5% per annum from 2022/23 
onwards.  

 The strain on public finances more generally with the Chancellor of the 
Exchequer stating that the Covid-19 economic crisis has just begun; from 
past experience any future fiscal and spend measures that seek to reset 
the public finances may be borne disproportionately by local government.   

 Brexit poses a further risk to public finances, inflation and economic 
growth.  

                                            
2
 The scheme compensates local authority for 75% of income lost, above a 5% budget threshold, from 

sales fees and charges. It excludes commercial income. 

Page 14



 The impact of an economic downturn on major council projects, such as 
the Civic Campus or Education City development, and risk to future 
contributions from developers.  

 Departmental risks. The risks for the services covered by these PACs are 
set out in Appendix 2. 

29 Reserves are also a key enabler for future service transformation. The financial 
challenge facing the council will require investment to deliver future efficiencies 
to enable the council to balance the budget in future years. 

 
30 The Covid-19 pandemic has emphasised the need for reserves to be 

maintained at an adequate level. The lack of an adequate safety net has 
resulted in several councils, including Croydon and Bexley in London, across 
the country running into difficulties. The Council’s reserve forecast includes a 
general balance of £19m. This represents 3.6% (equivalent to 13 days spend) 
of the Council’s gross budget of £528m. Given the heightened financial risks 
facing Hammersmith & Fulham it is proposed that, over the medium-term, the 
council seek to increase general balances. The 2021/22 budget proposals 
include a contribution to general balances of £1.1m as a result of one-off 
benefits expected in 2021/22.  

 
Comments of the Director of Children’s Services 

31 During the past year Children’s Services have further strengthened practice and 
services to improve outcomes for all children and young people with an 
increased emphasis on rigorous performance management, transparent 
governance and accountability and enhanced scrutiny of activity and outcomes.  
Regular audit and learning reviews are now embedded practice and external 
scrutiny has included the Ofsted inspection of children with special educational 
needs and disabilities in 2018 and the 2019 Inspection of Local Authority 
Children’s Services (ILACS). The latter judged services to be Good overall and 
Good in each of the three domains; help and protection, children in care and 
care leavers, and leadership and management. The performance in all phases 
of education continues to be excellent with a strong collegiate approach which 
is evidenced in school inspection outcomes. The 2020 Ofsted annual 
conversations in respect of both education and social care have been very 
positive. 

  
32 The resilience and commitment of services has been severely tested during the 

pandemic and we are proud of our comprehensive, creative and sustained 
response to support and safeguard vulnerable children and young people, and 
to enable all children to learn, continue to thrive and realise their ambitions. This 
is documented in our Responding Together report (presented to the Children 
and Education Policy and Accountability Committee in July 2020) which reflects 
the cross cutting and adaptive partnerships which are supporting this work. 
 

33 Over recent years the Children’s Services department has experienced 
increasing demand for its services which has put significant strain on the limited 
resources available. Higher numbers of referrals for adolescents and demand 
for placements especially for older looked after children and care leavers have 
increased along with significant rises in the demand, complexity and statutory 

Page 15



responsibilities for young people with special education needs (SEN). The 
2021/22 budget seeks to fund these additional pressures whilst enabling a high-
quality service to be maintained and also contributing to the need for 
efficiencies in a way that protects young people and improves outcomes. The 
ongoing pandemic is likely to have a further  impact on demand over the longer 
term as more families experience prolonged duress and the impact of economic 
downturns. 
 

34 The department’s approach to identifying potential savings has been consistent 
with the vision for Children’s Services which is: 

  
 To improve the lives and life chances of our children and young people; 

intervene early to give the best start in life and promote wellbeing; ensure 
children and young people are protected from harm; and that all children have 
access to an excellent education and achieve their potential. All of this will be 
done whilst continually reviewing how to reduce costs and improving service 
effectiveness. 

  
35 The aspiration and ambition to ensure consistent and compassionate care and 

improved outcomes is underpinned by a continuing commitment to protect the 
quality of services to the most vulnerable members of the community within the 
statutory framework required of the department. Equally strong is the central 
commitment to work with children, young people and their families in the design 
and development of services that affect them. This was evident throughout our 
response to Covid-19 and in our overarching commitment to active engagement 
and inclusion of all children and young people and their parents and carers. 
 

36 A key priority remains to review services against the need to ensure that they 
are as responsive, efficient and offering the right outcomes for children and 
young people as they can be. We now have improved mechanisms for better 
understanding the drivers of demand and local needs to inform effective 
targeting and earlier use of resources and to proactively identify, address need 
and keep children and young people safe, healthy and engaged in learning. 
Improved performance information and business intelligence underpin this 
priority. 
 
 
Table 10 – Children’s Services key budget changes 
 
 

 

37 The department’s proposed net budget for 2021/22 is £50.953m. Within this 
sum are areas over which the department has little direct control, these are 

Directorate
2021-22 

Savings £'s

2021-22 Contract 

Inflation £'s

2021-22 

Growth £'s

Children's Commissioning -80,000 108,400 0

Education -268,000 51,100 1,010,000

Children and Young People's Services -400,000 263,200 605,000

Director of Children's Services 0 2,100 0

Children's Performance & Improvement 0 0 0

Total -748,000 424,800 1,615,000

Page 16



defined as non-controllable and include contributions to Corporate Services 
and capital charges. In total these add up to £4.879m. This means that the net 
direct expenditure that the department is in control of is £46.074m. The table 
below sets out how controllable expenditure is budgeted across the various 
directorates within the department showing that the greatest share of net 
general fund expenditure is on Children and Young People’s Services, 
£28.769m (62%) of net controllable expenditure. 
 
Table 11 – Children’s Services 2021-22 Controllable budget 
 

 
 

 
 

38 Savings totalling £0.748m have been identified for 2021/22 and are set out in 
Appendix 1.  
 

39 The savings proposals for Children’s Services will seek not only to protect 
frontline services and to continue to offer a service appropriate to local need, 
but to improve our offer to residents facing difficult circumstances such as 
poverty and higher levels of need. The proposals will seek cost reductions 
through reduced spending on costly external placements by enhancing or 
expanding inhouse and local provision. 
 

Directorate

2021-22 

Expenditure 

£'s

2021-22 Income 

£'s
Total Net £'s % share

Children's Commissioning 6,422,200 -1,239,700 5,182,500 11%

Education 104,826,500 -94,792,800 10,033,700 22%

Children and Young People's Services 35,930,100 -7,161,200 28,768,900 62%

Director of Children's Services 782,100 -668,100 114,000 0%

Children's Performance & Improvement 2,538,700 -564,300 1,974,400 4%

Total 150,499,600 -104,426,100 46,073,500 100%

Children's 
Commissioning

11%

Education
22%

Children and Young 
People's Services

63%
Director of 

Children's Services
0%

Children's 
Performance & 
Improvement

4%

% of General Fund Net Controllable Budget

Page 17



40 At the core of all savings proposals will be services that strengthen families and 
support parents to care for their children whilst steadfastly remaining vigilant 
with regards to our duty to safeguard vulnerable children and young people 
taking decisive action to protect those that need it. 
 

41 Appendix 1 also details £1.615m growth in 2021/22 for Children’s Services. 
Growth is targeted at the budget pressures and rising demand experienced in 
2019-20 in Travel Care and Support, the Haven, and client related non-
placement costs.  

 
 

 Children and Young Peoples Services 
 

42 Children and Young People's Services spend is primarily made up of staffing 
and placement costs. Increasing caseloads and complexity of cases had led to 
growing pressures which were met with growth of £4.118m awarded in the 
2020-21 budget setting process.  

 
43 The continued increasing demand that this growth was based on has not 

materialised in 2020-21 in part due to work by the service to reduce costs 
through effective move on arrangements and better value provision such as 
semi-independent block contract arrangements. In addition, the service has 
focused on supporting more young people to remain safely at home where 
possible and in stable and secure caring placements where this is not possible; 
reducing reliance on expensive placements and sourcing high quality local 
placements; reviewing the effectiveness and outcomes of interventions and 
improving support through Family Assist and the clinical team to enable 
children and young people to remain in their family. This has reduced the 
anticipated upward trajectory reported in 19/20. The 2021-22 budget setting 
process has targeted £1.550m of savings against the placements budget and 
will attempt to reduce cost and at the same time have a positive impact on 
service users. £0.400m are to contribute towards the MTFS and £1.150m will 
help mitigate client related cost pressures and departmental staffing budget 
pressures. 
 

44 While growth has been awarded in the past for placements, client related non-
placement budgets such as transport and subsistence costs as well as legal 
costs have not increased and the overspends have been reported in previous 
years and have continued into 2020-21. Growth has therefore been requested 
as despite cost reduction strategies being implemented, a pressure will remain. 
Remaining pressures not covered by growth are subject to mitigations within 
these areas as well as from placements savings. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 
 
 
 
 

Table 12 – Children and Young People's Services controllable budget 
expenditure types 

 

 
 

 
Safeguarding, Quality Assurance and Performance & Improvement 

 
45 The Safeguarding, Quality Assurance and Performance & Improvement budget 

totals £1.974m with £1.609m of this for Safeguarding. 
 
The Safeguarding, Quality Assurance and Performance and Improvement 
budget is primarily made up of staffing the statutory requirements of the child 
protection and children looked after systems and a small proportion funding 
independent quality assurance activity.  

Staffing, 
12,776,500 , 

35%

Staffing -
Indirect, 

1,061,500 , 3%

Other 
expenditure, 

2,464,400 , 7%

Placements, 
17,847,800 , 

50%

Client non 
placement, 

1,779,900 , 5%

Children and Young People's Services Controllable 
Expenditure Subjective Breakdown

Page 19



 
 

Education 
 

46 Since September 2020 we have merged the former SEND service with the 
Education service to align education strategic priorities and to accelerate 
further reforms which include the review of High Needs Block funded 
expenditure, commissioning school places and outreach review. This would 
complete an initial phase of consolidation. In the next phase we will seek to 
develop further school to school support and to ensure sufficiency of places 
and provision in Hammersmith and Fulham. 
 

47 The ongoing challenges of the pandemic and the reshaping of the education 
offer has increased pressure on both schools and the local authority. However, 
good communication has been sustained throughout the period and a 
collegiate response to planning contingency arrangements has been 
developed to maintain stability and support the most vulnerable children. 
 

48 Hammersmith & Fulham Schools have remained open throughout the 
pandemic for both vulnerable children and key worker children. The Education 
service supported 4000 families throughout the summer and half term breaks 
in accessing hub provision, recreational opportunities and catch-up lessons.  
 

49 The Ofsted Schools Framework has been suspended during the pandemic with 
limited assurance visits focussed on blended learning. Ofsted will start to 
inspect schools requiring improvement before the end of the academic year. 
 

50 The Special Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND) directorate provides 
services for 0-25 year olds with special educational needs or disabilities. A 
number of its services are fully, or part funded by the DSG.  

 
51 The net general fund budget of £10.034m in the Education service includes 

£4.123m on SEN travel care and support after proposed growth of £1.01m is 
proposed from 2021/22 to support SEND travel care and support as well as the 
enhanced service from The Haven residential home. 

 

81%

19%

Breakdown of net controllable budget

Safeguarding, Review and Quality Assurance

Children's Performance & Improvement

Page 20



52 Short breaks and resources including care packages for disabled children, the 
Stephen Wiltshire Centre and the Haven account for £3.532m of the budget. 
Medium term budget growth of £0.513m was provided to the disabled 
children’s placement budget in 2020/21, to address increases in demand and 
rising costs. Savings of £0.268m are proposed from 2021/22 and achieved via 
improved joint funding arrangements with the Clinical Commissioning Group 
(NHS) and through service redesign. 

 
53 Education Assets, Operations and Planning is responsible for ensuring we 

have a sufficient number of school places across the borough, tackling the 
challenge of modernising and improving the school estate through major 
regeneration programmes as well as coordinating projects across the 
department.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



  

 Children’s Commissioning 

 
54 The team is responsible for a range of commissioning, transformation and 

service improvement activity supporting the department to shape provision 
using innovative approaches to ensure quality and cost effectiveness. The net 
controllable budget for the directorate’s Commissioning function totals 
£5.183m. Within this total £3.636m is allocated to contract costs including early 
help, children’s centres and youth services, £0.467m is for three Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services: early intervention, looked after children 
and behavioural support to prevent costly placements. The commissioning 
team is responsible for around 70 contracts totalling circa £60m with budgets 
for these contracts sitting within the respective operational areas. Contracts are 
split into four key areas – Prevention, Social Care, Travel/Food and 
SEND/High Needs/Joint Commissioning. 
 

55 Commissioning is an enabler to managing cost pressures more broadly across 
Children’s Services with direct contribution to MTFS savings through 
recommissioning and supporting practice changes. The team has been 
working across CHS to develop and deliver transformation programmes to 
meet budget challenge objectives to reduce general fund pressures, notably an 
Early Help re-design and the development of in borough placement sufficiency. 
In addition, a significant amount of work has been undertaken to support the 
High Needs programme and the redesign of early intervention pathways. Over 
the last year the team have also actively driven programmes of work 
throughout the COVID19 pandemic whilst maintaining business as usual 
activities. During the pandemic the team mobilised provision of food to 
residents, led resilience and business continuity planning for CHS, PPE 
distribution and mobilisation of school holiday programmes. 

 
56 Staffing (after associated income) accounts for £1.081m. This year the team 

was restructured to bring staffing costs within budget. In doing so we have 
been able to fully recruit, enabling us to move away from agency staffing. The 
team will be up to full capacity before the end of January 21, to enable us to 
focus our resources on the key priorities for CHS next year including 
transformation programmes such as reviewing and redesigning our mental 
health pathways, and speech and language therapy service redesign.   

 
 
 Comments of the Strategic Director of Social Care 
 

57 Social Care funds the social care services for 2,632 residents. 2,209 live in the 
community and 423 people live in residential and nursing care. Since 2016/17 
Social Care has contributed savings of £13.2 million. Social Care has balanced 
its budget since 2017/18 but due to the initial impact of Covid-19 last year’s 
budget was slightly overspent. Covid-19 related activity has dominated the work 
of Social Care since March 2020. 

 

 

Page 22



Key messages from Directors of Adult Social Care 

58 The Covid-19 pandemic has exposed the fragility of adult social care and the urgent 
need for reform.  

59 Covid-19 has made a fragile care market even more susceptible to market failure. 
The focus on rapid discharge from hospital without taking account of the needs of the 
whole health and care system has had consequences.  

60 More short-term support is needed to help manage the adult social care response to 
the pandemic. There are increasing demographic pressures with a focus on services 
for working age adults. social care’s future ability to make further savings is even 
more challenged due to the additional pressures placed on it by the pandemic. 

61 A consistent approach is needed for funding social care and the NHS as two parts of 
an interlinked system, with any future NHS budget increases replicated for social 
care. Had Adult Social Care expenditure risen in line with Department of Health and 
Social Care funding increases since 2010/11, Adult Social Care expenditure would 
have been £3.4 billion in 2020/21 instead of the £2.6 billion budgeted expenditure 
across London councils. Estimates3 suggest that an extra £6-8 billion of funding 
(nationally) is required to support Social Care and put it on a more sustainable level 
to meet growth and demand for an ageing population.  

Public Health 

62 The Public Health service is fully funded by the Department of Health’s grant and will 
remain a nil cost budget to the Council. The level of grant for 2021/22 is expected to 
be same as in 2020/21. The Council’s base budget for public health investment in 
Council services is being increased from £6 million to £6.8 million as the service 
looks at more efficient and effective ways of delivering public health outcomes within 
the pandemic and the challenging financial environment. 

63 In response to the Covid-19 outbreak, the Public Health service has been playing a                
key role in ensuring the safety of residents through its innovative infection control 
work, in implementing a Track and Trace response and making Hammersmith & 
Fulham the first London council to implement lateral flow testing. 

Key outcomes delivered in Social Care & Public Health 

64 Policy outcomes: 

 The administration continues its commitment to making life more affordable for 
older and disabled residents by providing free home care, very low cost meals on 
wheels and not increasing careline charges. 

 The council continues to make life more affordable by paying our contractors and 
sub-contractors London Living Wage for their staff who provide services for our 
residents. 

 

                                            
3
 ADASS budget survey 2020, The impact of Covid-19 on Social Care budgets, published June 2020 

Page 23



65 Covid-19 outcomes: 

 Positive praise by Duncan Selbie, (former Head of Public Health England), on the 
social care response to Covid-19. He stated “An exemplar of this has been the 
work of Hammersmith & Fulham Council and the leadership of the Director of 
Public Health and Strategic Director of Social Care. They moved early and fast to 
put an enhanced level of protection around social care ahead of national guidance 
and based on the strength of their local relationships and knowledge about what 
works. Their achievements include enhanced testing, financial support to prevent 
loss of income for care home staff should they need to isolate, and as a social 
services director group in North West London, the development of ‘hot hubs’ – 
transitional beds for people being nursed in isolation until they test negative and 
can safely return to their own home or care home. There is even more to be 
recognised on their work delivering PPE, setting up a Community Action Network 
to support vulnerable residents and on academic collaboration with Imperial 
College London. I thank them and the whole council for a thoroughly instructive 
and enjoyable virtual visit this week. They have much to be proud of and have 
undoubtedly saved lives.” 

 Innovative infection control work with care homes on track and trace and on the 
early adoption of lateral flow testing.  

 Continued excellent performance on reducing delayed transfers of care despite 
the impact of the pandemic, which significantly saves costs for the NHS.  

 We have received 152 unsolicited compliments since April 2020 from residents 
(this is four times more than last year). 

  
66 Managing the budget and performance: 

 Greater leadership ‘grip’ and management support with care providers. 

 Reviewing sensitively all care support in accordance with the Care Act. 

 Managing the budget in an integrated way with operational managers, 
commissioning and finance. 

 Greater use of dashboards to manage performance during Covid-19. 
 

Market management 

67 We have produced a market assessment analysing the social care market and 
advising the recommended inflation to be applied to social care contracts in 
2021/22. Under the Care Act, there is an obligation for the council to maintain 
and facilitate a market for social care. 

68 We are proposing a 4.5% inflationary increase due to additional cost pressures 
faced by care and home care providers associated with Covid-19, the increased 
costs for PPE, enhanced cleaning, infection control measures, staff shortages 
and vacancy management. Market stability is very fragile with some providers 
threatening to evict residents if their fees aren’t increased. Care home providers 
have received on average a 10% uplift due to Covid-19 in 2020/21.   

 

 

 

Page 24



Investment and Covid-19 proposals 

69 There are two growth proposals for 2021/22. One for demographic pressures 
and the second for residents with learning disabilities transitioning into 
adulthood. In addition, we have one proposal to be funded from the Covid-19 
allocation. This is to support hospital discharges, for patients who are 
reassessed for social care. The growth requested represents 0.4% of the 
revised gross expenditure for social care. Please refer to Appendix 1 for further 
detail of each growth proposal. 

Investment 2021/22 
(£000’s) 

2022/23 
(£000’s) 

2023/24 
(£000’s) 

2024/2025 
(£000’s) 

Demographic 
pressures 

471 1,283 2,119 2,978 

Learning disability 
transitions 

889 
 

943 994 1,063 

Hospital discharges 
(Covid-19) 

1,035 - - - 

Total 2,395 2,226 3,113 4,041 

 

Savings strategy 

70 There are savings of £1.95 million in 2021/22 rising to £2.2 million in 2023/24 
for social care. In public health, there are savings of £0.882 million in 2021/22 
rising to £1.148 million in 2023/24 which will be reinvested across departmental 
services.  

Change and savings 
proposals 

2021/22 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's) 

2022/23 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's) 

2023/24 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's) 

2024/25 
Budget 
Change 

Cumulative  
(£000's) 

Social Care 1,950 2,200 2,200 2,200 

Public Health 882 1,148 1,148 1,148 

  

Social Care – total savings plan of £1.950 million 

71 Our future savings plan aims to deliver change at a time of increasing demand, 
uncertainty and risk. Many of the proposed savings require a collaborative 
approach with residents and a range of agencies. Delivery will be supported by 
various programmes of work that focus on the following:  

 Service re-design – savings of £1.1million. 

 Workforce efficiency programme – savings of £0.4 million 

 Commissioning and contracts- savings of £0.25 million 

Page 25



 Digitalisation – savings of £0.2 million. 

Public Health 

72 The impact of 2021/22 efficiencies proposals is detailed in this report. All 
expenditure and savings will be contained within the ring-fenced public health 
grant budget. The £0.882m of public health savings all relate to contract 
management. Please refer to Appendix 1 for further detail of each savings 
proposal. 

Risks 

73 We have a good track record of delivering efficiency savings and tactically 
managing resources to achieve a balanced budget.  However, social care has 
identified several interrelated risks for financial management.   

74 Firstly, increasing demand for statutory services and market price that we must 
provide that is over and above what we have budgeted for. There is an inherent 
level of risk around the modelling that we undertake and continuing risk to 
further reductions in market supply and increases in workforce costs with Brexit. 

75 For our modelling of demographic pressures and learning disability transitions 
we have assumed a level of additional resource to be funded by the Council. 
There is an element that remains unfunded and must be treated as a risk. We 
are managing this risk through continued close tracking of each case and tight 
market management.  

76 Social care is flagging up three other risks, one relating to additional pressures 
relating to re-procurement of additional supported living facilities and one 
relating to hospital discharges which puts increased pressure on the Social 
Care budget. The other risk relates to grant funding ending for the Independent 
Living Fund and we are awaiting the outcome as to whether this will be 
extended for another year currently ending in March 2021.  

77 There are also significant unknown risks under Covid-19. Further modelling will 
be undertaken to estimate the financial risks involved. We will aim to manage 
these risks through tight monitoring of the budget on a monthly basis, 
reprioritising and changing support as appropriate and as required. Appendix 2 
provides further details and mitigating actions.  

 
Fees and Charges 

78 Despite central government funding cuts, the administration continues its 
commitment to making life more affordable for older and disabled residents by 
providing free home care, very low cost meals on wheels and not increasing 
careline charges. 

79 The cost of meals on wheels to residents is currently only £2.00 reduced from 
£4.50 in 2014/15. We are maintaining the £2.00 charge for a sixth consecutive 
year and freezing Careline charges for a fifth consecutive year. See Appendix 4 
for further details. 

Equality Implications 

Page 26



 
80 A draft Equality Impact Analysis (EIA), which assesses the impacts on equality 

of the main items in the budget proposals relevant to this PAC, is attached as 
Appendix 3. A final EIA will be reported to Budget Council. 

 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext. of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. None    

 
 
 
List of Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 – Savings and investment proposals 
 
Appendix 2 – Risks 
 
Appendix 3 – Draft Equality Impact Assessment 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 27



Investment and Savings  Proposals Appendix 1

Children's Services and Education

Ref Nos Service Title & Theme Summary 

2021-22 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2022-23 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2023-24 Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2024-25 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

             1 

 Children and 

Young Peoples 

Services 

 Placements Care Leavers 

 Making better use of semi-independent accommodation and 

moving young people to in-borough accommodation. This 

proposal will enable H&F’s care leavers to be placed locally 

with greater access to local services and opportunities.  

(400) (400) (400) (400)

             2  Education  Disabled children care packages 

 Delivered through service investment (budget growth in 

2020/21 and prior years), efficiencies (without reducing 

services) and greater joint funding contributions negotiated with 

health. 

(268) (321) (321) (321)

             3 
Children's 

Commissioning

Children & adolescent mental 

heath Services and wrap around 

Services 

Saving proposed as a result of service redesign and 

improvement:

• Improved and increased direct therapeutic work with parents 

of children and young people in need of support

• Increased system wide understanding of effective approaches 

to engaging vulnerable families

• Increased engagement of parents in specialist treatment and 

support services

• Improved support to professionals to understand parental 

mental health and reduce safeguarding concerns

(80) (80) (80) (80)

(748) (801) (801) (801)

Change and Savings Proposals Budget Change

Total Change and Savings Proposals

P
age 28



Investment and Savings  Proposals Appendix 1

Ref Nos Service Title & Theme Summary 

2021-22 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2022-23 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2023-24 Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2024-25 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

4  Education 
Investment in Travel Care and 

Support

Further significant investment is to reflect the increased 

demand of children and young people accessing travel care 

and support services, whilst maintaining the same high level 

quality provision.

700 700 700 700

5  Education 
Disabled children - Investment in 

The Haven

Investment in The Haven consolidates and supports  children 

with complex disabilities who need to be accommodated 

(Looked After) to remain living in Hammersmith and Fulham, 

having regular contact with families and remaining at their local 

special schools.

310 310 310 310

6

Children and 

Young Peoples 

Services

Client Related Non Placement 

Costs

This investment will ensure ongoing support to:

•  children and families to remain safely living together in the 

community

•  children looked after. This includes transport to school and 

appointments, contact escorts, setting up home allowances and 

subsistence

305 305 305 305

7

Children and 

Young Peoples 

Services

Client Related Costs

Investment in legal support to continue to fulfil statutory 

responsibilities in the delivery of services. Legal expenditure 

ensures that those children most at risk are protected in the 

long term through court orders which provide them with security 

and stability.

300 300 300 300

1,615 1,615 1,615 1,615Total Investment and Covid Recovery 

Investment and Covid Recovery Budget Change

P
age 29



Investment and Savings  Proposals Appendix 1

Social Care & Public Health 

Social Care savings proposals 

Ref Service Title & Theme Summary 

2021-22 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2022-23 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2023-24 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2024-25 Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

Savings

SC1

Quality, Safety & 

Performance and 

Learning Disabilities, 

Mental Health & In-

House - Jo Baty & Chris 

Nicklin

Reframing and re-

designing of services

Reviewing community care packages and ensuring the right support is provided:

- reviewing much earlier and more effectively the arrangements on discharge from acute 

hospitals and making the right choices in relation to the next steps for older people

- review care needs to determine if they meet NHS Continuing Health Care funding

- reviewing community care packages

- increasing direct payments

- reduction in placement numbers

-1,000 -1,000 -1,000 -1,000

SC2
Operations - Lisa 

Redfern

Workforce efficiency 

programme

Workforce including Social Care front door contribution to a Council front-door service (H&F 

Community Action Network).
-200 -200 -200 -200

SC3
Adults Commissioning - 

Jo McCormick

Commissioning and 

Contracts

There are a number of re-commissioning opportunities such as specialist housing and extra care 

which will develop the offer, improve value for money and be subject to tighter contract 

monitoring.

-250 -250 -250 -250

SC4

All divisions - Chris 

Nicklin & Lee 

Fermandel

Digitalisation 

Use of technology to improve communications with people, access to information and advice and 

promote independence. Working on partnership to develop our multidisciplinary team model to 

reach digitally excluded communities.

-200 -200 -200 -200

SC5

Provided services & 

Adults commissioning - 

Jo Baty & Jo 

McCormick

Re-design of services Modernisation and re-design of both internal and external day opportunities. -100 -350 -350 -350

SC6
All divisions- Lisa 

Redfern

Workforce efficiency 

programme
Management and agency staff workforce re-design. -200 -200 -200 -200

Social care - Total Savings proposals (1,950) (2,200) (2,200) (2,200)

Budget Change

P
age 30



Investment and Savings  Proposals Appendix 1

Social Care Investment and Covid-19 funding. 

Ref Service Title of bid Description

2021-22 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2022-23 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2023-24 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2024-25 Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

HSC1

Quality, Safety & 

Performance and 

Learning Disabilities, 

Mental Health and In-

House

Demographic 

pressures in Social 

Care

The Social Care budget is under severe pressure due to an ageing population, increasingly 

complex needs resulting from learning disabilities and mental health issues. We have forecasted 

a 3.4% increase in the numbers of older and disabled people over the period 2020 to 2024 which 

equates to in monetary terms to cumulative total of £2.978m of investment required.

471 1,283 2,119 2,978

HSC2

Learning Disabilities, 

Mental Health and In-

House

Learning disability 

transitions

Additional funding is required for the LD budgets to fund the increasing number of disabled 

children transitioning into adult services. We have estimated that there are likely to be 69 more 

children by 2023/24 creating a cost pressure on an already overspending budget.

889 943 994 1,063

CSC1
Quality, Safety & 

Performance
Hospital discharges

There is a high expectation that the NHS will seek to pass on greater discharge costs, putting 

pressure on the Social Care budget
1,035 - 0 0

2,395 2,226 3,113 4,041

Public Health savings proposals - reinvested into public health outcomes

Ref Service Title & Theme Summary 

2021-22 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2022-23 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2023-24 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2024-25 Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

Savings

PH1 Public Health
Contract category 

management

Savings from better procurement of health visiting and school nursing. Service quality to be 

same or better with savings achieved through improved procurement and contract negotiation. 
-600 -800 -800 -800

PH2 Public Health 
Contract category 

management

Saings from better procurement of stop smoking services and bringing adult weight management 

services in house. There will be discussions with Sports and Leisure to ensure access to 

programmes and activities for those who do not want to access gyms.

-160 -160 -160 -160

PH3 Public Health 
Contract category 

management

Improved contract management of sexual health contracts, with improved outcomes for 

residents. 
-122 -188 -188 -188

Public Health  - Savings proposals (882) (1,148) (1,148) (1,148)

Total Investment

Budget Change

Budget Change

P
age 31



Financial Risks Appendix 2

Department & 

Division
Short Description of Risk

2021/22 

Value 

(£000's)

2022/23 

Value 

(£000's)

2023/24 

Value 

(£000's)

2024/25 

Value 

(£000's)

Mitigation

 Children and 

Young Peoples 

Services 

Increased demand as a result of the service being needs led
Targeting of earlier intervention through use of family group conferences, 

involvement of Family Assist services and monitoring of trends

 Children and 

Young Peoples 

Services 

Greater demand on services as more families experience prolonged 

duress and the impact of economic downturn due to the pandemic

Undertaking risk assessments and monitoring closely through the vulnerable 

children's group

Total

 Children's Services Department Risks

Risk

To be kept under review and closely 

monitored. 

To be kept under review and closely 

monitored

P
age 32



Financial Risks Appendix 2

Department & 

Division
Short Description of Risk

2021/22 

Value 

(£000's)

2022/23 

Value 

(£000's)

2023/24 

Value 

(£000's)

2024/25 

Value 

(£000's)

Mitigation

All divisions

Demographic pressures - The Social Care budget is under pressure 

due to an ageing population, increasingly complex needs resulting from 

learning disabilities and mental health issues. We have forecasted a 

3.4% increase in the numbers of older and disabled people over the 

period 2020 to 2024 which equates to in monetary terms to cumulative 

total of £3.9m investment required. (The majority of this request is 

shown as a growth proposal with the balance treated as a risk).

496 640 787 939
Regular and robust review of residents' care is needed to ensure that care plans 

accurately reflect current assessed care needs.

Learning Disability

Learning disability transitions - Additional funding is required for the 

learning disability budgets to fund the increasing number of young  

disabled transitioning into adult services. We have estimated that there 

are likely to be 69 more young people by 2023/24 leading to a cost 

pressure on an already overspending budget. (the majority of the 

pressure is proposed as a growth request and the balance shown as a 

risk).

123 133 141 154
Regular and robust review of residents' care is needed to ensure that care plans 

accurately reflect current assessed care needs.

All divisions

Hospital discharges - There is a high expectation that the NHS will seek 

to pass greater discharge costs, putting pressure on the Social Care 

budget.  

0 1,035 0 0
The proposal is to fund this in year 1 but the risk will need to be managed in year 2 

through review of residents care needs.

Learning Disability
Supporting living strategy for adults with learning disabilities - this is a 

new contract model and currently at procurement stage. 
150 150 150 150

The outcome of the funding requirement will be known after the procurement exercise 

is completed.

All divisions Independent Living Fund - Grant ending 31st March 2021 772 772 772 772 The Council is waiting on the announcement to whether this grant will continue. 

All divisions

Covid-19 impact on mental health services, isolation, increasing drugs 

and alcohol and obesity will place further pressure on adult social care 

budget. Further modelling will be undertaken to estimate the financial 

risks involved. 

? ? ? ?
Tight monitoring of the budget on a monthly basis, reprioritising and changing support 

as appropriate and as required. 

Total 1,541 2,730 1,850 2,015 

 Social Care Department Risks

Risk

P
age 33



Appendix 3 
 

Draft Equalities Impact Assessment 2021/22 
 
 
Children’s Services Savings Proposals 

 

1 – Care Leavers Accommodation Programme - £400,000 
 
This programme aims to increase supply of local quality housing provision for care 
leavers. This proposal will enable H&F’s care leavers to be placed locally with 
greater access to local services and opportunities. This includes allocated social 
workers, family and support networks. It is therefore believed that this proposal will 
have a neutral impact as the savings proposals will not see a reduction in services 
levels and support will continue to be provided to vulnerable children. 
 

2 – Disabled Children Care packages, direct payments and residential placements - 

£268,000 

 

Savings will be delivered from the overall Disabled Children’s Team Short Breaks 

budget which funds a combination of care packages, direct payments and residential 

placements for disabled children in Hammersmith & Fulham who are assessed as 

eligible for support either through assessment under the Children Act as Children in 

Need or through assessment under the Chronically Sick and Disabled Person’s Act 

as being eligible for short breaks. Proposal will deliver savings through:  

 Co-production with parents and carers of a transparent resource allocation 

process 

 Recouping of unused direct payment balances in line with Direct Payment Policy  

 Direct payments and care packages increased where necessary to prevent 

children becoming Looked After Children 

 A new community behaviour outreach service  

 Improved joint funding CCG and across High Needs Block expenditure  

 

These proposals will have a neutral impact on those with protected characteristics 

because while the services in question are delivered for disabled children who 

clearly have protected characteristics, none of the actions will deliver cuts in services 

to either the group as a whole or to any individual child.  

 

Service developments will deliver improved services which will ensure that support is 

available for disabled children and their families as required, further improved use of 

local services and development of new services such as the behaviour outreach 

service will see improved outcomes.  

 

Development of the co-produced eligibility and resource allocation system is ongoing 

and will not be launched until parents are satisfied that it is fair and equitable, this 

system will be reviewed from a legal perspective to ensure that the process is 

Page 34



Appendix 3 
 

appropriate.  it is not the intention of this policy to reduce service to any child, rather 

it will provide a clear guide to eligibility.  

 

3 – Children & adolescent mental health services (CAHMS) and Wrap around - 

£80,000 

 

This proposal will bring inhouse the Parental Therapy Programme service to be 

provided from within Children and Young People’s Services by Hammersmith & 

Fulham’s Clinical Team. 

 

The service offers brief or time limited systemic psychotherapy to parents, carers 

and their families to address safeguarding concerns and reduce the impact of 

parental mental health on children and young people.   

 

Based on the low number of referrals to the service there is an opportunity to absorb 

this function effectively within Hammersmith & Fulham’s Clinical Team. 

 

Benefits of this change to an in-house model include:   

•  Improved and increased direct therapeutic work with parents of children and young 

people in need of support to manage safeguarding related risk.    

• Increased system wide understanding of effective approaches to engaging 

vulnerable families with the aim of supporting families to stay together.  

• Increased engagement of parents in specialist treatment and support services 

which is more likely to lead to reduced number of children on a child protection plan 

due to parental mental health, domestic violence or substance misuse.  

•  Improved support to professionals to understand parental mental health and plan 

effectively to reduce safeguarding concerns.    

 

This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

 
Children’s Services Investment Proposals  
 
 
4 - Travel care and support – expenditure in education and health care plans 
(EHCPs) travel related costs £700,000 
 
Budget growth is requested to reflect the increased demand of children and young 
people accessing travel care and support services. It is believed that this proposal 
has a neutral impact on those with protected characteristics because the budget 
provides investment to ensure the needs of Hammersmith and Fulham children and 
young people are met to the same high standards of service provision in line with 
statutory requirements.  
 
5 - The Haven £310,000 
 
The investment in The Haven consolidates and supports a change in the business 
model which has enabled children with complex disabilities who need to be 
accommodated (Looked After) to remain living in Hammersmith and Fulham, having 

Page 35



Appendix 3 
 

regular contact with families and remaining at their local special schools.   This forms 
an expansion of the Local Offer for Disabled Children in Hammersmith and Fulham. 
 

This proposal has a positive equalities impact. 

 
6 - Client related non placement costs - £305,000 
 
Costs related to sections 17 and 23 support for children and families have exceeded 
budget for the past two years due to increased demand. Section 17 expenditure is 
cost related to supporting children and families to remain safely living together in the 
community. It includes support for subsistence, essential items, living costs, family 
support workers etc. to support children's wellbeing, keep them safe and reduce 
escalation of need and likely entry into care.  Section 23 expenditure is cost related 
to supporting children looked after. This includes transport to school and 
appointments, contact escorts, setting up home allowances, subsistence payments 
etc. Transport related cost constitute the biggest spend.  
 
It is believed that the proposal to increase this budget has a positive impact on those 

with protected characteristics as the proposals are in line with the business as usual 

functions of the department to safeguard and promote the welfare of children within 

the area who are in need; and to promote their upbringing by their families, by 

providing a range and level of services appropriate to those children’s needs. The 

proposals will continue to ensure that the financial or cost related support given to 

children and families are purposeful and meet an identified need. An assessment will 

determine the need for support and the particular support identified as essential to 

meet the needs of the child and/or prevent the child from suffering significant harm. 

The assessment will take into account any protected characteristics of a child or 

family to ensure that they are not negatively affected, and an allocated worker will 

usually be involved with the family to ensure that the support is based on assessed 

need and its effectiveness is reviewed.  

It is believed that this proposal has a positive impact  
 
7 - Legal Services Investment £300k 
 
Investment in legal support to continue to fulfil statutory responsibilities in the 
delivery of services. A high proportion of care proceedings resulted in Supervision 
Orders in 2019/20. Legal expenditure ensures that those children most at risk are 
protected in the long term through court orders which provide them with security and 
stability. 
 
There is a neutral equalities impact because the decision to take court action is led 
by need; court action will be taken for any child suffering or likely to suffer significant 
harm where no other intervention can provide the necessary protection.  
 

 
 

 

Page 36



Appendix 3 
 

 
 
 
 

Social Care and Public Health  
 
 

SC1 Reviewing community care packages and ensuring the right support is 
provided- £1.000m 
 

This business case is focused on reviewing community care packages and ensuring 
the right support is provided by reviewing much earlier and more effectively the 
arrangements on discharge from acute hospitals and making the right choices in 
relation to the next steps for older people, for people with mental health issues and 
with learning disabilities. Additionally reviewing care needs to determine if they meet 
NHS Continuing Health Care (CHC) funding, reviewing community care packages, 
increasing direct payments and a reduction in placement numbers. 
 
The business case builds on work undertaken in 2020/21 when in the context of 
Covid-19 and associated Discharge to Assess model, we have made significant 
improvements in our collaborative approach.  Also in the associated coordination of 
reviewing residents sooner after discharge, to reduce unnecessary dependency on 
long term care.  
 
The associated planning required in Phase 1 and 2 of Covid-19 necessitated a 
differentiated approach to the support needs of our residents returning home post 
hospital or for those who moved into a care home or supported living. Underpinning 
this the timely reviews and focus on independent living (utilising direct payments and 
pooled budgets as it appropriate) enables Social Care to focus resources on those 
who most need it and reablement models inform more choice and control for our 
residents and better use of public funds for the Council. 

 

The business case also relates to making better use of NHS and other funding 
streams where appropriate, including NHS CHC and Funded Nursing Care (FNC). 
This work is embedded in Social Care but requires significant resources to ensure 
fair and equitable apportionment of funding from CHC. The work also needs to be 
extended to residents leaving hospital with mental health needs and to those 
residents with learning disabilities who are (often) in out of borough expensive care 
support. 

 

This proposal has neutral impact on those with protected characteristics as the 
proposal focuses on reviewing community care packages and ensuring the right 
support is provided and this builds on work undertaken in 2020/21. 
 

SC2 - Workforce including social care front door contribution to a Council front-door 
service - £0.200m 
 

Page 37



Appendix 3 
 

The workforce efficiency programme will work to improve workforce efficiency by 
taking a whole-Council view and approach to support Social Care through different 
projects. An increase in population places an increased demand and dependence on 
the Social Care system. The additional financial costs and flow of work is 
unsustainable. We need to find alternative ways of meeting needs whilst delivering 
statutory duties. 

 

The ‘conversation at the one front door’ will focus on outcomes that draw on the 
resident’s strengths and assets to achieve the lives they want for themselves - 
reducing unnecessary referrals where appropriate. Greater co-produced 
independent living solutions will provide the new model of reablement. This also 
involves working collaboratively and creatively with the community and voluntary 
organisations for stronger, sustainable, independent communities.  
 

The pandemic has really shown how we can deliver improved outcomes for H&F’s 
residents by working together. We will encourage residents to self-serve wherever 
possible and statutory support will be provided via direct payments as the default 
option, reducing unnecessary dependency on longer-term support. 
 

During the pandemic we have learned so much about new and more agile ways of 
working and we hope to capitalise on this. The ‘one front door’ programme will drive 
culture change within services, provision of equipment for smarter working, 
maximising use of property portfolio and reducing unproductive time for staff.  
 

Staff and managers are supported to adopt agile working by digitising procedures 
and services constrained by location. Information and knowledge management so 
staff are supported to adopt smarter working through greater amounts of information 
being available electronically with the ability to collaborate with colleagues in virtual 
spaces. 
 
This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 
 
SC3 – Re-commissioning and contract management- £0.250m 
 

We have identified more efficient and effective value for money approaches to 
delivering the same service. We will achieve this through negotiations with existing 
providers and redesigned recommissioned services. 
 

The business case focuses on achieving £0.250m in savings from Social Care 
commissioning and contracts. At least £0.100m will be achieved through floating 
support services. For the remainder, we are looking at through independent living 
contracts. It is anticipated that some may be secured through robust contract 
management. 
 

Page 38



Appendix 3 
 

We will review services and identify appropriate contract variations as well as taking 
the opportunity to redesign services that are due for recommission. Key areas to be 
looked at include floating support and carers’ service models. 
 

This is a neutral equalities impact as it is a contract negotiation exercise and the 
service will not be reduced.   
 

SC4 – Digitisation to improve communications with people and access to 
information -£0.200m 

 

Adopting the processes, culture and technology and introducing new digital 
capabilities to deliver a new, modern digitally capable Social Care system. This 
will enable service enhancements, cost reduction and improved demand 
management. 

 
We will establish cross-cutting digital solutions for staff, residents and partners. 
Implement technical solutions identified and co-designed with services which 
support the realisation of benefits for whole-system change. Exploit opportunities 
to join-up data, scale solutions and improve sustainability of services. This will be 
enabled by developing a number of the capabilities and dimensions of a digital 
Council, online/web, automation/Artificial Intelligence/Robotics including Care-
bots, information and insights from data and analytics, tech/app enabled new 
business, tech-enabled services for residents, social media platforms and 
content. 

 

Digital access and training programmes available for residents including digital 
hubs supporting community access and innovation. This will provide a range of 
benefits such as giving residents a seamless public service digital experience. 
There will be a Social Care benefit from improved demand management and 
increased capacity (time to focus on task). Real time data insights will mean 
social care can manage demand and support residents most at risk. It will also 
allow operating cost reduction from demand management and automation across 
services. 

 
Efficiencies will include reduced demand from resident’s unnecessarily re-
entering system. It will make it easier for resident’s support to be reviewed 
regularly. There will be a possible reduction in unit cost of care (peer/market 
comparison) as well as a reduction in the Social Care workforce as a result of a 
leaner system.  

 
This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 

 
SC5 – Redesign of day care service - £0.100m 

 

This business case focuses on the transformation of both internal and externally 
commissioned day opportunities. 

 

Page 39



Appendix 3 
 

The transformation of in-house day opportunities in Phase 1, commenced pre- 
Covid-19 and was focused on Options Day Services. Over forty residents who 
utilised this support were involved in co-producing the future ‘offer’ one where the 
building would be open seven days a week offering a range of short courses and 
opportunities to promote independence rather than a ‘one size fits all’ offer. 

 

The new model for Day Services will utilise direct payments and pooled budgets to 
support engaging a range of tutors and specialists to deliver small-group sessions for 
our residents which support them in being fully active participants in Hammersmith 
and Fulham and would be underpinned by a less expensive and dated model of ‘day 
care’ where residents are transported on a mini bus first thing in the morning and 
dropped off back at home at the end of the afternoon.  
 

The model aligns to transformation elsewhere in Social Care, (Front Door, 
Reablement, Conversations Matters, Mental Health Integrated Teams around 
Primary Care Networks) and there are other synergies with the Community Aid 
Network and Mutual Aid Groups. 
 

In the context of Covid-19 we have re-visited what the transformation of both in-
house and commissioned Day Services could look like, mindful of Public Health 
England guidance and associated restrictions around numbers. It is clear that a 
peripatetic model of support provided in the community/in people’s homes/using 
digital communication platforms is one key strand of the model going forward.  
 

Another could be targeting those residents (and their families) most isolated and in 
need of support and re-purposing our buildings to meet their needs (within PHE 
support bubbles).  Either way, the new model of Day Services provides opportunities 
for efficiencies in staffing and in transport and going forward, a co-produced model 
will inform a more significant saving in 2022/23. 
 
This proposal is neutral as the day service is proposed to be remodelled and 
provided in a different way. 

 
SC6 - Management and agency staff workforce re-design - £0.200m 
 
The proposal will be to further streamline the management in Social Care and 
reduce the agency staff bill. Covid-19 has provided a focused level of detail use of 
the agency staff employed in the department and this review is proposed to reduce 
the agency staff numbers by 50% by April 2021.   
 

This proposal relates to better resourcing and deployment of staff. The department 
will continue to be measured by the same resident-focused performance measures 
and residents will not experience a decline in service. 
 

This proposal has a nil/neutral equalities impact. 
 

Page 40



Appendix 3 
 

EIA – Social Care Investment and Covid-19 
 
HSC1 – Demographic pressures in Social Care – £0.471m 
 
The Social Care budget is under severe pressure due to an ageing population, 
increasingly complex needs resulting from learning disabilities and mental health 
issues. As people age their needs become more complex or their informal care 
arrangements often break down, as unpaid carers can no longer support their 
relatives and friends. These demographic pressures need to be factored into Social 
Care service plans, as they represent a clear cost pressure that will impact on 
services. Whilst the numbers receiving support from Council may not increase 
significantly, the cost of care packages will increase reflecting more complex needs, 
including supporting individual in their own homes. For H&F demographic pressures 
relating to the increased numbers of older and disabled people requiring Social Care 
is forecasted to be an average of 3.4% increase over the period 2020 to 2024 which  
equates in monetary terms to a cumulative total of £2.978m over this period. 
 
 
HSC2 – Learning disability transitions – £0.889m 
 
Additional funding is required for the LD budgets to fund the increasing number of 
disabled children transitioning into adult services.   
 
There are several factors causing cost pressures in LD which include:  

 Increasing volumes of disabled children transitioning into adult services 
reflecting the fact that more children with significant disabilities live to become 
adults.  

 Increasing acuity of need.  
 People with LD now have a life expectancy which is not particularly shorter 

than the general population.  
 As people with LD age, so does the age of parents who can no longer provide 

the care and support they used to, which results in increased demand for 
social care services.  

 Increasing numbers of care packages/direct payments against LD budget for 
those not meeting LD but having assessed needs relating to their autism.  

 Lack on in borough provision resulting in high cost of Out of Borough (OoB) 
placements.  

 
For one-year £0.889m will be needed to fund 28 new customers. 
 
 
CSC1 – Hospital discharges – £1,035m 
 
The Government has decided that any patients discharged from hospital between 19 
March 2020 and 31 August 2020, whose discharge support package has been paid 
for by the NHS, will need to be assessed and moved to core NHS, social care or 
self-funding arrangements. Therefore, there is a high expectation that discharges 
made from hospital into health settings will be reassessed into the Social Care 
market. The financial consequences are likely to be more significant in 2021/22 with 
a full year impact estimated at £1.035m 

Page 41



Appendix 3 
 

 
These investments will have a positive impact due to additional funding of £2.395m 
that will result in additional resources for Social Care services. 
  

Page 42



Appendix 3 
 

 
Public Health Savings Proposals  
 
Three savings are proposed for public health, each relating to better procurement 
and contract management. In each case savings will result in the same or better 
services, and funds released will be reinvested in public health outcomes.   
 
PH1 Savings and procurement for health visiting and school nursing – £0.600m 
 
The proposal is to procure the 0-19 healthy child programme including health visiting 
and school nursing with improvements to outcomes through a refreshed model for a 
competitive price, with savings reinvested in public health outcomes. 
 

The savings proposed are contractual. Through benchmarking it has been identified 
that the Council is currently paying over the London average for services of this kind 
and a reduction in contract price will generate efficiencies without reducing 
outcomes.  
 

Elements of the service are required by law and outcomes are reported and 
monitored by Public Heath England through the public health outcomes framework. 
  

This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 
 
PH2 Cardiovascular disease prevention re-procurement - £0.160m 

 
Proposals are to re-procure stop smoking services and bring adult weight 
management services in house, with savings reinvested in public health outcomes. 
There will be discussions with Sports and Leisure to ensure access to programmes 
and activities for those who do not want to access gyms. 
 

It has been identified that there is currently duplication with the Environment  
Department in the services that are accessible to residents in relation to weight 
management i.e.  physical activity, wellbeing, nutrition and cook and eat sessions. 
 

Health and Social Care commission will work with Sports and Leisure to ensure that 
services are accessible through current referrals routes and provision is enhanced 
through Sports and Leisure.  
 

Savings are being made through efficiencies and reductions in duplications rather 
than reductions in services accessible to residents. 
 

This proposal has a neutral equalities impact. 
  

Page 43



Appendix 3 
 

 
PH3 Contract variation for Support and Advice on Sexual Health - £0.122m 

 
The proposal will review the model, reduce the focus on general activities to 
enhance the approach to targeted activities and associated outcomes, with savings 
reinvested in public health outcomes.  
 

Mitigations to the reduction in contract price will be to reduce the promotional advice 
and information services in the community and offer less professionals training, have 
greater presence online and maintain targeted work with those in greatest need.  
 

Costed plans and service remodelling will need to be agreed and commissioners will 
work with the provider to minimise the effect on service users.  
 

As services are in their fourth year, SASH has a good footprint in the borough, so 
promotion of services can be refined. 
 

The proposal to reconfigure this service will have a neutral equalities impact if 
contract variation proposals can be limited to universal services and training and do 
not affect targeted work. Advice and information will be available online. 

Page 44


	Agenda
	4 2021 Medium Term Financial Strategy
	Appendix 1 - Children's Services Department, Investment and Savings Proposals
	Appendix 2 - Children's Services Departmental Risks
	Appendix 3 - Equalities Impact Assessment


